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DP152 ‘Consumption on Smart Polyphase Electricity Meters’This document is classified as White in accordance with the Panel Information Policy. Information can be shared with the public, and any members may publish the information, subject to copyright. 

Request for Information 
Responding to this consultation
This is a Request for Information (RFI) for DP152 ‘Consumption on Smart Polyphase Electricity Meters’. 
We invite you to respond to this RFI and welcome your responses to the questions set out in this form. To help us better understand your views on this Draft Proposal, please provide rationale to support your responses. For us to set out the business case we ask that you provide any information you can on the costs and benefits of this modification to you. This can be a rough order of magnitude and can be marked as confidential.
To help us process your response efficiently, please email your completed response form to sec.change@gemserv.com with the subject line ‘DP152 Request for Information response’.
If you have any questions or wish to respond verbally, please contact Mike Fenn on 020 3314 1142 or email sec.change@gemserv.com.
Deadline for responses
This consultation will close at 17:00 on Friday 3 September 2021. 
The Proposer may not be able to consider late responses.

Summary of the proposal
What is the issue?
Polyphase meters are electrical meters used for measuring three phase electricity supply. Polyphase meters are sometimes used in scenarios where each phase is used for a specific purpose e.g., for heating and/or Electric Vehicle (EV) charging. Separate phase consumption data provides Suppliers the opportunity to offer innovative propositions which allow the customer to be billed at different rates for each phase/purpose. 
Currently smart polyphase meters only provide profile consumption data as a combined value across the three phases. Therefore, the tariffs offered to those consumers who have polyphase metering equipment is applied to the cumulative consumption of all three phases combined, rather than individual phase data.
Some polyphase electricity meters support the measurement of consumption on each phase, however, the Smart Energy Code (SEC) does not currently support functionality that would allow this individual phase data to be retrieved, where it is available.
The current arrangements severely limit the opportunity to provide support to consumers around their energy efficiency choices which they could do if their consumption figures were provided at a more granular level. 

What is the solution?
The Proposed Solution is yet to be determined, however, the Proposer is seeking to allow DCC Users to have the ability to interrogate polyphase metering equipment and to be able to read consumption data at each phase.
The Proposer would like the following requirements to be met: 
Allow consumers to obtain consumption data, across meter phases.
Allow Suppliers to opportunity to deliver smart tariffs, by using the ability to read phase data.


Respondent details
	Respondent details

	Name
	Click and insert your name
	Organisation
	Click and insert the name of the organisation you are responding for
	Phone number
	Click and insert a phone number we can call you on with any queries


	Parties represented

	Party Category
	Click and select your Party Category
	Parties represented
	Click and insert the name(s) of any SEC Parties you are responding for


	Confidential information

	Does your response contain any confidential information?

	Response
	Click and select your response
	If ‘yes’, please clearly mark all confidential information (e.g., in red font).
Any confidential responses will be shared with the Change Sub-Committee, the Change Board, and the Authority under a Red classification in accordance with the SEC Panel Information Policy.



Consultation questions and context
With the onset of increasing levels of EV charging and other household requirements, such as underfloor heating, solar panels and heat pump heating and cooling an increase in demand for polyphase meters has been predicted. The number of polyphase meters currently installed in the field is estimated to be less than one million. Some of these meters are Automated Meter Reading (AMR) and are not SMETS1 compliant. Those that are SMETS1 compliant, will not be migrated to the DCC, as confirmed by The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS). 


What do you see is the future use of polyphase meters?
Polyphase meters contain independent measuring elements, allowing consumed energy to be measured in up to four wires. Currently polyphase meters only provide consumption data combined across the phases.
	Question 1

	Do SEC Parties see a benefit in having the ability to read separate consumption data, on each phase of a polyphase meter?
Please provide your rationale where available.

	Response
	Click and select your response
	Rationale
	Click and insert the rationale for your response


As more and more consumers install solar panels, heat pump heating/cooling, EV charging there is potential for demand to rise for polyphase meters to be installed. 
	Question 2

	As the rollout progresses, what percentage of your customers do you estimate will require a SMETS2+ polyphase meter and over what timescale?
Please provide your rationale where available.

	Response
	Click and select your response
	Rationale
	Click and insert the rationale for your response



What are the benefits of using polyphase meters?
The intent of this Draft Proposal is to expand the existing Service Request Responses to include consumption values from each phase. This will potentially require DCC System changes to include new Service Responses and potentially new Service Requests. Consequently, this may also require some SEC Parties systems to detect if the response payload is the existing single or new multi-phase response and parse accordingly.
	Question 3

	[bookmark: _Hlk529864189]Do you believe this will provide a business benefit to you? If possible are you able to provide a rough order of magnitude (RoM) of the business benefit at this stage?
Please provide your rationale where available.

	Response
	Click and insert your required lead time
	Rationale
	Click and insert your response and rationale


	Question 4

	Do you believe it would be beneficial for the solution to include the ability for Suppliers to set price tariffs per phase?
Please provide your rationale where available.

	Response
	Click and insert the rationale for your response
	Rationale
	Click and insert your response and rationale



What about prepayment consumers?
There are currently no prepayment polyphase meters available, however, if domestic adoption of polyphase metering is likely to increase then prepayment functionality may also be required to meet the needs of all consumers.
	Question 5

	Do you believe it would be beneficial for the solution to replicate existing pre-payment functionality per phase?
Please provide your rationale where available.

	Response
	Click and insert the rationale for your response
	Rationale
	Click and insert your response and rationale



What are the alternatives to using polyphase meters?
BSC Proposal P375 proposes using Metering Equipment ‘behind’ the defined Boundary Point for Balancing Services (‘behind the Meter’), for Settlement purposes rather than the Boundary Point Meter. This will allow balancing-related services on-site to be separated from imbalance-related activities, more accurately reflecting the balancing-energy volumes provided by the Balancing Service Provider (BSP).
	Question 6

	What benefits do you believe this SEC Draft Proposal will bring over and above Elexon's P375 asset metering change to the Balance and Settlement Code, other than allowing a unique tariff per phase?
Please provide your rationale where available.

	Response
	Click and insert the rationale for your response
	Rationale
	Click and insert your response and rationale



	Question 6

	Do you believe there is an industry benefit for this Draft Proposal to be developed further?
Please provide your rationale.

	Response
	Click and insert the rationale for your response
	Rationale
	Click and insert your response and rationale


Any other comments
	Question 7

	Please provide any further comments you may have.

	Comments
	Click and insert any further comments

Smart Energy Code Administrator and Secretariat (SECAS)

8 Fenchurch Place, London, EC3M 4AJ
020 7090 7755
secas@gemserv.com
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